

KILNHURST M.F.C.
(OUTLAWS92)
**COMBINED CONSTITUTION,
RULES AND REGULATIONS**

1. The object of the Club is to offer the facilities to promote the leisure activity of flying radio controlled model aircraft and helicopters, and to promote a helpful and friendly environment.
(Helicopter frequency to be 80 and above or 2.4Ghz).
2. The Officers to be elected at an A.G.M. or E.G.M. – Office to be held for twelve months. All nominations to be proposed and seconded by another Member.
The Club shall comprise of the following Officers: - Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary and Treasurer, with all paid up Members being the Committee.
The Officers will be directed by the Members at regular meetings.
3. Officers shall have the power to make emergency decisions.
4. The Treasurer will keep an exact account of all financial aspects of the Club. books to be laid open for inspection at every meeting, by any Member.
5. The Secretary to keep records of minutes and report at every meeting. All correspondence to be addressed through the Secretary.
6. Annual General Meeting to be held every twelve months, date and venue to be decided by Officers. All Members to be informed in writing with a copy of the Agenda.
7. E.G.M. A minimum of 40% of the Members must apply in writing to the Secretary if they require an E.G.M. to be called, and give the Officers 14 days notice. The Secretary to give 1 Months notice to members of such meetings. E.G.M. to be arranged within one month of receipt of request. Officers of the Club can also call an E.G.M.
8. Liquidation of the Club should be decided after an A.G.M. or E.G.M. by the Members of the Club.
All equipment to be sold and all assets remaining after all liabilities have been paid will be shared equally between all remaining paid up Members.
9. All Members to act in a safe and responsible manner when on the flying site. Anyone not doing so, to be reported to an Officer of the Club, so as to explain themselves at the next meeting. This Club has the power to dismiss anyone that they consider has no reasonable explanation.
10. All Members must adhere to the Combined Constitution, Rules & Regulations.
11. A Safety Officer will be appointed for any field events.
12. Membership numbers will remain floating .
An applicant must complete an Application Form.
If necessary, a waiting list will be instituted and Membership offered on a vacancy occurring basis from the earliest accepted Application.
13. New Members will receive a copy of the Combined Constitution, Rules & Regulations.
14. At each A.G.M. the Club Officers shall be elected to serve for a period of twelve months, until the next A.G.M., where they may be available for re-election.
There must always be 2 remaining Officers from the previous year, in order to reduce any detriment to the running of the Club.
15. The A.G.M. of the Club shall be held on the first Tuesday of February, or as near that date as may be practicable.
Formal meetings are held on the first Tuesday of each month.

(Continued)

16. At the A.G.M. a quorum of 40% of the Membership shall be present before any Club business is transacted.
17. No alterations or additions shall be made to the Combined Constitution, Rules & Regulations except at the A.G.M. or E.G.M. of the Club, and by a two-thirds majority of those voting. The Committee shall, however, have the right to introduce and enforce any interim rules, subject to approval by the Club, which it may consider necessary to obviate the possibility of complaint which could lead to the loss of Club flying sites or facilities.
18. Renewal of subscriptions are due to be paid by 30th November. Subscriptions received after this date will incur a Late Rejoining Fee.
Any Member who has not paid their subscription prior to the A.G.M. forfeits their right to participate in the business of the A.G.M. and will be obliged to make a further application to join the Club.
 - The Annual Subscription fees are
 - : £35.00 Club Membership
 - : £10.00 Late Rejoining Fee
 - : £28.00 BMFA Membership -Adult
 - : £15.00 BMFA Membership - Junior
19. Any Member acting in a manner considered by the Officers to be prejudicial to the good name of the Club, may be requested to resign from the Club and refrain from using Club facilities or attending Club meetings.
20. The Officers shall have the power to call upon any Member to retire from the Club after he / she have had notice to appear at a formal meeting but the Member shall have the right to appeal to a special meeting of the Club.
21. At the A.G.M. The Club Treasurer shall submit a financial report and balance sheet for the preceding year and may be called upon to present a statement of the Clubs financial situation at any monthly business meeting of the Club.
22. At a date near to the A.G.M. The Club shall appoint two non-official Members of the Club to audit the Club accounts.
23. Upon resignation or retirement, a Member shall forfeit all rights and interest in the property and funds of the Club.
24. Should the Club, at any time, and for any reason be disbanded, all assets shall be equally divided among fully paid up Members.
25. Expenditure incurred in the Clubs name shall be reclaimable only from the Club funds and not from Members as individuals. In the event that the Club funds are insufficient to meet liabilities, all Members will be asked to pay equally, a special levy to meet the deficit.
26. Honorary or temporary Membership may be offered to selected persons at the discretion of the Members and shall be in a non-voting capacity.
27. Junior Members, i.e. those in full-time education, will be permitted to fly provided Rule 28 is observed at all times.
The blood Relative or Approved Carer will be responsible to the Club for the junior Members conduct at the field.
28. Children and vulnerable adults must be accompanied at all times whilst at the “Kilnhurst Model Flying Club” field by a blood Relative or an Approved Carer.
29. Any Member, encountering any problem with any aspect of the flying field MUST not discuss the problem with the Farmer and MUST contact the Chairman, who will work to resolve the issue.